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VT HISTORIC SITE FORM
PARK CITY MUNICIPAL CORPORATION

IDENTIFICATION

Property Name (if any): Park City High School

Address: 1255 Park Avenue

Date of Construction: completed 1928 City, County: Park City, Summit County, Utah
Architect/Builder, if known: unknown Tax Number: SA-72-X

Current Owner: Park City Municipal Corporation

Legal Description (include acreage): LOTS 1 THRU 44 BLK 7 SNYDERS ADDITION TO PARK CITY CONT 1.89
AC; ALSO THAT PORTION OF VACATED WOODSIDE AVENUE BEG AT THE SE COR OF BLK 7 & RUN TH N'LY
ALONG THE E LINE OF BLK 7 TO THE NE COROF LOT 8 BLK 7 A DISTANCE OF 200 FT; TH W ACROSS THE
R/W TO THE NW COR OF LOT 37 OF BLK 6; TH S'LY ALONG THE W LINE OF BLK 6 TO THE SW COR OF LOT
44 OF BLK 6 A DISTANCE OF 200 FT M/L; THW TO THE PT OF BEG CONT 0.23 AC BAL 2.12 AC GQC-
197372-242-243

STATUS / USE

Original Use: educational Current Use: public - library

Property Type: National Register of Historic Places: Evaluation:

M Buiding M ciigible B ondmark Site
[ Structure [1ineligible [ Significant Site
[1site [ Listed, Date: [L1Non Historic
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DOCUMENTATION

Photographs: Research Sources:

[]Tax Photos B sanbomn Maps H City/ County Histories [ Newspapers
W prints: [Jtax Card [ Personal Interviews []Other:

[ Historic B census Records I park City Museum

DESCRIPTION

Architectural Style: high school type / Collegiate Gothic style

No. Stories: 3

Number of Associated Structures: []Accessory building(s). # [ Structure(s). #
Condition: I Good C1Fair [ Poor []Uninhabitable/Ruin

Location: | Original location ] Moved (Date: ,original location:

Materials: (Describe the visible materials)

Exterior Walls: Pressed brick

Foundation: Concrete

Roof: Flat roof form

Windows/Doors: Multi-pane casement

Additions: [] Major

Alterations: [ Major

. Minor D None
. Minor D None

Describe Additions/ Alterations (Dates):

Essential Historic Form: N Retains

NARRATIVE DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY

)

[]Does Not Retain

(Briefly describe the property and its setting. Include a verbal description of the location; a general description of
the property including the overall shape, number of stories, architectural style, materials, shape of roof; identify and
describe any associated structures; identify any known exterior additions and/or alterations.)

This handsome school building was built in a version of the Collegiate Gothic style, a style which uses Gothic
elements in a secular way. The three-story masonry building has pressed brick exterior walls with a parapet
capped by terra cotta coping. The main fagade on Park Avenue is symmetrical and marked by two entry
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porticoes, which consist of a double door with transom on the bottom level. Doors are topped by modernized,
Gothic-inspired tracery containing arched windows. The porticoes are capped with squared-off coping, a
decorative sign with the letter “P” and a “Park City High School” sign, which is flanked on either side by a clipped
corner with a finial. The fagade between porticos is divided into five bays by six pilasters topped by decorative
coping and a finial. Each bay contains a large multi-pane casement window in each floor. Very large multi-pane
windows puncture the facade on each floor between the entrance porticos and the north and south ends. The
north and south facades are relatively simple with a double door and windows, similar in elevation to the portico
entrances. The building used to be T-shaped, with the auditorium and gymnasium wing splitting off from the main
classroom bar. The Norfolk facade has been extended, however, to provide stage wings and theater storage to
the north and south of the gymnasium/theater wing on the two levels above grade. This was part of an alteration
project to prepare the building to become a library and arts center and does not diminish from the original
appearance or historical significance of the building. The overall form and materiality of the building remains intact
and the building retains its historic value.

SIGNIFICANCE

Historic Era:
[]Settlement & Mining Boom Era (1868-1893)
B viature Mining Era (1894-1930)

L] Mining Decline & Emergence of Recreation Industry (1931-1962)

Narrative Statement of Significance:

(Briefly describe those characteristics by which this property may be considered historically significant.)

When the site for the Park City High School building was secured in June 1926 it contained a handful of houses,
which were promptly demolished before grading was started. The site was between Norfolk and Woodside
avenues on the north side of 12th Street. The northern boundary was the old baseball grounds, which became
jointly held between the City and the school board. The Park City high school had been taught on the upper floor
of the Lincoln School. An addition was added to the building in 1914, but “The enroliment of students kept
increasing until in 1925 the high school was again becoming too crowded, and, because of the addition being built
over a cesspool, the school was becoming unsafe for use.” A new high school building was badly needed, and a
bond measure was finally approved by votes in a September 1925 election, supplying $200,000 in funds for the
new school.

The design for the new High School was completed by Scott & Welch, a prominent Salt Lake City architecture firm
in the early twentieth century. Carl W. Scott had graduated from the University of Utah in 1907, coming to Utah
from Minneapolis, Kansas, where he was born in 1887. George W. Welch was born in Denver in 1886, attending
Colorado College, moving to Salt Lake City after earning his architecture degree. Scott and Welch formed a
partnership in 1914 and became prominent in the design of institutional buildings in Utah. They designed many
schools throughout the state and the iconic Masonic Temple, Elks Club Building, and South High School in Salt
Lake City.
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The Scott & Welch design was praised by the Park Record, which wrote, “With beauty and efficiency blended,
plans of the building indicate that the school will be one of the most modern in the state.” Fire proofing was an
important consideration in Park City, especially in a school building, and the structure was made of concrete and
steel, with masonry exterior and interior walls, steel windows and doors, and linoleum floors. Three “fireproof”
stairs led to five exits “to provide rapid egress in case of emergency.” The Collegiate Gothic style of the building is
visible in the combination of modern elements, like the metal windows, with Gothic-inspired elements, most notably
the terra cotta finials and tracery around entrances.

After rejecting a few bids, construction on the new high school finally began in September 1926, with site and
foundation work being done before snow fell that autumn. Students moved into the building for classes at the
beginning of the 1927-28 school year as hoped, but the auditorium was not completed due to construction delays.
A formal opening ceremony was held on February 16, 1928, which was attended by about 800 people who were
addressed by Board of Education trustee J. William Stoner. In his address, Stoner dedicated the school to the
service of all mankind in that noble task of increasing knowledge and promoting virtue. But more particular let it be
devoted to the preparation of the young manhood and young womanhood of Park City, so that they may be better
fitted to carry on the duties of life, that they may here learn those lessons which not only fit them for their daily
vocations, but also those sterling qualities that make for high moral character and good citizenship.

The building served Park City as the high school for almost fifty years until the current Park City High School was
opened in 1977.

After the high school moved out of the building, it served as Carl Winters Middle School until the Treasure
Mountain Junior High was completed in 1982. The building sat vacant for most of the 1980s and was solicited for
proposals including a restaurant, a housing project, and a cultural center and hotel. It was ultimately decided to
renovated the building for the Park City Library—which was outgrowing its home at the moved and renovated
Miner’s Hospital—as well as other educational and cultural institutions. The $2.5 million renovation was completed
in 1993, and the building has housed the library ever since. The Jim Santy Auditorium on the third floor hosts
Sundance Film Festival events, as well as other community activities. The 1993 renovation is currently being
demolished and replaced with a new renovation to the north and west sides of the building. It remains to be seen
how this renovation will impact the historical integrity of the Park City High School building.
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PHOTOS

(Provide several clear historical and current photos of the property as well as locational maps indicating the
location of the property in relation to streets or other widely recognized features.)
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MAPS

1255 Park Avenue, Park City, Summit County, Utah

Intensive Level Survey—Sanborn Map history

Outside of extents of 1900 Sanbom

g
=}
o]
-
3
n
N
«©Q
Q
-
e
(=)
2]
-
$
*
)
S
@
=
&
=
@)

| e
| ot
] !
L ﬂru L | %
| %
|
el WA
ey ARUDITORRIN,
T SN SENRR FRLNS TEAS
2aa . =i T FrEas RE TS

T s AN
WOODSIDE

e

 WDODSIDE

Planning Department/ Park City Corporation






DOCUMENTS

viLoziEzY @eq

SUNISIURIY YSHD 1HSMOUBMT UYST Jaydieasay

[any prempoop, peiEdes 1288 § 00-61) ‘amepads | diog jedisuny 410 sed | vogesnpd jo preog A wed 986 L/I6Z/)

[ @ RUBMEOON, PEIEDER ‘D86 F e 1 QM [BRads “diogy [edioungy A0 Wed | uoneonpd jo paeog A0 Wed 996 LB/

FZ'ez'TT T, ‘am uoneodiol A0 Yed unyEneagy |2qes| kLIS

[ev-s21 '0z-27] ‘aon uogeiedion A0 wed Aunog Juwng BEGLIVL 1L

B5'¥'E. o0 "0'd o udijeanp3 o piecg HIEID Uy SZELELIL

2 "aA "0'd jo uoijeanpd jo puecg | xn e 'swouyafjod abioeg SZEL8IL

HFER. ‘aM ' d o usljeanp3 jo peog XN J@ 'S8(EI5 '3 We|ii, ST6LEIL

[201s sy Uo SI8UMO pug Aues Joy puosed @9s]

1] A unybnepw D peg lepfug ‘5 0ag) EEELFLILL

SINIWWOD INACEY | NOLOYENVEL [ (y3xng) 33unwae | (aamias)wounwae [ o SSIVC
uanduossp (s5a ppE J0) WGy SIS oIS 885) SEaUppY
[ebia) @epdwon 1o} WUa) 8IS JUGISIY S85) SnUSAY uoneiodioTy |[Bdouny A0 WEd  JdaUm0) JWaLInD
SpISPOON, JO UONISS PBUOPUB]E § vp-L] LME vs (ebesloe spnjoul) uondiioseq |eban 1n ‘Ao sed fno

X-ZiYS JBguInp xeg
[22W0 5J8pJooay AUNOD) I8 SHOOG JOBNSGE S} LY UCHELLOUI UIEKGO]
NHO4 HOYWVY3S 31111

anuany yed 557 | |Ssalppy

Planning Department/ Park City Corporation



1255 Park Avenue, Park Cily, Summit County, Ulah
Intensive Level Survey—Biographical and Hisforical Research Malerials

Our New High School
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